
Managing Wisconsin’s trust assets for public education 

Sarah Godlewski, Secretary of State 
John Leiber, State Treasurer 
Joshua L. Kaul, Attorney General 

101 E. Wilson Street 
2nd Floor 
PO Box 8943 
Madison, WI  53708-8943 

(608) 266-1370 INFORMATION
(608) 266-0034 LOANS 
(608) 267-2787 FAX 
bcpl.wisconsin.gov 

Thomas P. German, Executive Secretary 

AGENDA 
March 19, 2024 

2:00 P.M. 
Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 

101 E. Wilson Street, 2nd Floor 
Madison, Wisconsin 

Routine Business: 

1. Call to Order

2. Approve Minutes – March 5, 2024 (Attachment)

3. Approve Loans

Old Business: 

4. None

New Business: 

5. Proposed Easements – Moose Lake

Routine Business: 

6. Chief Investment Officer’s Report

7. Executive Secretary’s Report

8. Board Chair’s Report

9. Future Agenda Items

10. Adjourn

AUDIO ACCESS INFORMATION 
------------------------- 

Conference Line Number: 608-571-2209 
1st Tues of the month Conf ID Code:  207 822 241# 
3rd Tues of the month Conf ID Code: 335 125 302# 

Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 03/19/2024 Page 1 of 9



State of Wisconsin                Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 

Board Meeting Minutes 
March 5, 2024 

Present were: 

Sarah Godlewski, Board Chair  Secretary of State 
Josh Kaul, Commissioner  Attorney General 
John Leiber, Commissioner State Treasurer 
Tom German, Executive Secretary Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
Rich Sneider, Chief Investment Officer Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
Denise Nechvatal, Controller  Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
Chuck Failing, IT Manager Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
Mike Krueger, IT Specialist Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 
Thuy Nguyen, Office Manager  Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 

ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER 

Board Chair Godlewski called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m. 

ITEM 2.  APPROVE MINUTES  

MOTION: Board Chair Godlewski moved to approve the minutes; Commissioner Leiber seconded the motion.  

DISCUSSION: None. 

VOTE: The motion passed 3-0. 

ITEM 3.  APPROVE LOANS  

MOTION: Commissioner Kaul moved to approve the loans; Commissioner Leiber seconded the motion. 

DISCUSSION: Mr. Sneider shared that loan #1 is to the Town of La Pointe for $4.9 million is financing part of the 
town’s $17 million acquisition of a ferry line. The Town of La Pointe is on Madeleine Island across from the City of 
Bayfield. The town did not want another party to purchase the ferry line and put access to their residences on 
Madeleine Island at risk. Revenues from the ferry line are expected to cover about 85% of the cost of the purchase with 
increases in property taxes projected to cover any remaining cost. Loan #3 is to finance acquisition of land to expand 
an industrial park in Waupun and loan #6 is to finance the engineering and repair of the Trout Lake Dam. Loan #4 is to 
the Town of Rutland in Dane County. The town is borrowing about $2,000,000 to finance a new town hall and garage 
building.  

Commissioner Leiber asked if the ferry line is the one that the board recently discussed pertaining to a submerged land 
lease.  

Executive Secretary German replied, yes. The ferry line operates a dock on filled lakebed in the City of Bayfield. We 
were able to execute a new submerged land lease so the ferry line can keep their terminal on filled lakebed. The ferry 
line is now being transferred from private to public ownership. The lease will be able to transfer to the new ferry line 
owners.  

Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 03/19/2024 Page 2 of 9



VOTE: The motion passed 3-0.  

The Board of Commissioners of Public Lands (BCPL) unanimously approved $8,714,740.00 in State Trust Fund 
Loans to support 9 community projects in Wisconsin.  

1. Town of La Pointe / Ashland County / Finance purchase of Ferry Line / $4,900,000.00
2. Town of Wilson / Sheboygan County / Finance roadwork / $530,000.00
3. City of Waupun / Dodge and Fond Du Lac Counties / Finance land acquisition / $400,000.00
4. Town of Rutland / Dane County / Finance new town hall/garage building / $1,956,000.00
5. Village of Albany / Green County / Finance purchase of truck / $59,000.00
6. Trout Lake District / Juneau County / Finance engineering and repair of Trout Lake Dam / $183,000.00
7. Town of Lucas / Dunn County / Finance purchase of grader / $349,740.00
8. Town of Rock Elm / Finance purchase of dump truck / $200,000.00
9. Town of Superior / Douglas County / Finance purchase of grader / $137,000.00

ITEM 4.  OLD BUSINESS 

None 

ITEM 5. NEW BUSINESS 

 None 

ITEM 6.  CHIEF INVESTMENT OFFICER’S REPORT 

None. Mr. Sneider shared that he will be discussing some of the venture capital investments made in the State at a 
future meeting, per Commissioner Leiber’s request from last meeting.  

ITEM 7.  EXECUTIVE SECRETARY’S REPORT 

Executive Secretary German reported that he spoke to the Wisconsin County Foresters Association to give them a 
briefing on who we are, what we do, and how we do it. The presentation and discussion went very well. We should be 
strengthening that relationship because from a land management standpoint, we’re very similar.  

He recently met with staff from the Conservation Fund. The Conservation Fund has been in the news because there has 
been a controversy regarding lands in the Pelican River Forest. The Fund acquired 70,000 acres of land from another 
entity and then sold conservation easements. We had reached out to some of the stakeholders up north about the 
possibility of BCPL acquiring some of those lands. The land would have a conservation easement on it, but the 
easement would still allow timber harvesting. The Great Lake Timber Producers indicated that they would be very 
supportive of that acquisition as we had demonstrated a record of responsible harvesting. This could be a significant 
transaction for BCPL which could have a profound impact on the direction and vector of the Normal School Fund. We 
are in the very early stages, but Secretary German thought it was important to let the board know what we have been 
discussing and because the Conservation Fund has generated a fair amount of news and some of it controversial. 

However, if we were to move forward, we would need to have a lot more discussions with the local residents to make 
sure we've got local stakeholder support. A transaction of this size could conceivably give us a path to generating 
significantly more timber revenue for the Normal School Fund, perhaps more than double what we are currently 
making, and our numbers are already up.  

Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 03/19/2024 Page 3 of 9



Board Chair Godlewski asked about what the ballpark range of the transaction is and how many acres are currently in 
our landbank.  

Executive Secretary German replied it’s a complex transaction that could be as much as 12,000 acres. We currently 
have 3,000 acres of room in our land bank cap for land we can acquire and a little less than $2 million dollars to invest 
on land purchases. The Forest Service is currently moving forward on due diligence for purchasing perhaps 5,000 
acres of scattered lowlands from BCPL.  These lands are either in-holdings in the Chequamegon Nicolet National 
Forest or adjacent to it.  

The Conservation Fund acquired over 70,000 acres, but within those 70,000 acres, BCPL has about 3,500 acres that 
are in-holdings within the blocks of lands that the Conservation Fund acquired. We are looking at exchanging some of 
these in-holdings to the Conservation Fund, giving them a more consolidated block and in return BCPL would get a 
consolidated block of productive upland pine plantation. That would be a great acquisition for us because pine can be 
harvested at any time of year no matter the weather, there is significant demand for it and this deal could conceivably 
more than double our annual timber revenue. 

If we were able to close such a large land transaction, the biggest limiting factor for future timber revenue would be 
staffing and resources on our end to be able to handle the increase in land management activity. The Normal School 
Fund is roughly $30 million and if we started adding over $2 million per year to the principal from timber revenue, the 
principal of the fund would be growing at a rate of over 6% per year without considering the effect of any investments.  
The numbers look good enough to put agency time and resources into exploring the possibilities. Secretary German 
cautioned that we're still at the very beginning stages of this possible transaction. He is hopeful we can accomplish the 
acquisition as Mr. Sneider would have more investment money to deploy for the Normal School Fund on a regular 
basis.  

Board Chair Godlewski asked where the Pelican River Forest is located. 

Executive Secretary German replied that it is in southeastern Oneida County. It is conveniently located close to our 
Lake Tomahawk office.  

Board Chair Godlewski asked when this transaction will be brought to the board because some previous land 
transactions have taken multiple boards. 

Executive Secretary German did not have a firm timeline for the transaction as it was still in a very early and tentative 
stage. He explained that one of the things he made sure the Conservation Fund understood was that our board is 
comprised of three statewide elected officials and every four years there are statewide elections. The Conservation 
Fund staff understood the need for timely progress and provided feedback that if the transaction were to move forward, 
it was certainly possible to finish it before the next election. It is important to note that the Conservation Fund is 
looking at selling all 70,000 acres it acquired so there is a real possibility that BCPL might not be able to acquire the 
lands it is targeting in this matter.  We will provide the board with regular updates as things move along. 

ITEM 8. BOARD CHAIR’S REPORT 

Board Chair Godlewski reported that we had a great presentation and opportunity to share the news of the record $65 
million distribution with all of the librarians and media specialists. She thanked Commissioner Leiber who was there 
and provided a few words, Executive Secretary German, Mr. Sneider and Denise Nechvatal were in attendance as well. 
To hear the excitement and appreciation is one of the bright spots in the work we do. Teachers, librarians, and media 
specialists shared their gratitude for this funding. Almost everyone talked about the referendums they’re facing, how 
concerned they were, and how this is something that can be constant as far as monies to provide books, technology, 
and educational materials. It was good to talk with them and good to hear how much these funds are really needed. 
These funds are essential for them. It was a good event, and she looks forward to next year's announcement.  

Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 03/19/2024 Page 4 of 9



Thomas P. German, Executive Secretary 

Commissioner Leiber shared that it was fun. It's a good group and more people attended this year than at the event in 
Wausau last year. People pulled us aside afterwards to thank us. It's nice to talk to the people our money is going 
directly to. He wanted to thank them all for putting the funds to good use. 

ITEM 9. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

None 

ITEM 10. ADJOURN 

Board Chair Godlewski moved to adjourn the meeting; Commissioner Kaul seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 3-0; the meeting adjourned at 2:25 p.m. 

 

Link to audio recording:  
https://bcpl.wisconsin.gov/bcpl.wisconsin.gov Shared Documents/Board Meeting Docs/2024/2024-03-05 
BoardMtgRecording.mp3   

Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 03/19/2024 Page 5 of 9

https://bcpl.wisconsin.gov/bcpl.wisconsin.gov%20Shared%20Documents/Board%20Meeting%20Docs/2024/2024-03-05%20BoardMtgRecording.mp3
https://bcpl.wisconsin.gov/bcpl.wisconsin.gov%20Shared%20Documents/Board%20Meeting%20Docs/2024/2024-03-05%20BoardMtgRecording.mp3


 State of Wisconsin  

BOARD MEETING
MARCH 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM 3 
APPROVE LOANS

 Board of Commissioners of Public Lands

Municipality Municipal Type Loan AmountLoan Type

City $200,000.00Seymour1. General Obligation
Rate: 6.00%Outagamie County

Term: 20 yearsApplication #: 02024111
Purpose: Finance Promissory Note Debt Payment

Village $500,000.00Strum2. General Obligation
Rate: 6.00%Trempealeau County

Term: 10 yearsApplication #: 02024112
Purpose: Finance operations

Town $250,000.00Delafield3. General Obligation
Rate: 6.00%Waukesha County
Term: 5 yearsApplication #: 02024113

Purpose: Finance roadwork

$950,000.00TOTAL

Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 03/19/2024 Page 6 of 9



State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 

BOARD MEETING 
MARCH 19, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM #5 
PROPOSED EASEMENTS – MOOSE LAKE 

RECITALS 

A. The purpose of this transaction is to clean up some unresolved issues from previous
transactions which occurred decades ago.

B. At this time, BCPL owns two parcels of land in the Town of Round Lake, Sawyer
County generally described as:

Lot 1 of CSM 5461 and

Government Lot 1, less and except Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map (“CSM”) 5459

All located in Township 41 North, Range 5 West, Section 30

These parcels are depicted on a map which is attached as Exhibit A.

C. In 1862 BCPL acquired Government Lot 1 in a federal Swamp Land Patent.

D. Later, a certified survey map (“CSM”) was drafted which subdivided Government
Lot 1 and a separate CSM was drafted which subdivided neighboring Government
Lot 2.

E. Around 1995 BCPL conveyed Lot 1 of CSM 5459 (located in part of Government Lot
1) to Elizabeth Haling (“Haling”), in exchange for Lot 1 of CSM 5461 (located in
parts of Government Lot 2, the NE/NE, and the SE/NE) to BCPL.

F. The property formerly owned by Haling is now owned by her son, Steven Barnes, and
his wife, Ann Berlage (collectively “Barnes”).

G. Barnes owns Lot 1 of CSM 5460, being part of Government Lot 1 and the NE/NE,
Section 30, Township 41 North, Range 5 West, Town of Round Lake, Sawyer County
(“Barnes Property”). Said Lot 1 includes the land BCPL exchanged to Haling and
Haling’s ownership prior to the exchange, less the land she conveyed to BCPL.

H. A fiber optic company has requested placement of a fiber optic line across the two
BCPL parcels to serve the Barnes Property. Despite existing electric and telephone
lines already crossing BCPL property, there is no evidence that BCPL ever granted

Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 03/19/2024 Page 7 of 9



the right to install these lines. A utility easement was not addressed in the Haling 
Exchange in 1995.  

I. After the Haling Exchange was completed, BCPL granted an access easement to
Haling across the parcel she had just conveyed to BCPL, presumably because she did
not reserve access across said parcel in her deed to BCPL. However, the easement did
not address Ms. Haling’s lack of legal access across that part of Government Lot 1
still owned by BCPL. Furthermore, the signatures on the easement were not
authenticated or acknowledged, thus precluding Haling from recording it in the
Sawyer County Register of Deeds Office.

J. BCPL staff is requesting authority to grant an access and utility easement to Barnes
across the two BCPL parcels to clarify land use rights.

K. Barnes has agreed to pay a fee of $500 for this request which BCPL staff believe to
be full and fair compensation in accordance with Wis. Stats. Section 24.39.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of
Public Lands approves granting an access easement and utility easement to Steven Barnes 
and Ann Berlage for the sum of $500.00 in accordance with Chapter 24 of the Wisconsin 
Statutes on such terms and conditions as the Executive Secretary determines to be reasonable 
and necessary. The Executive Secretary is authorized and directed to execute any documents 
reasonably necessary to complete such transaction. 

Board of Commissioners of Public Lands 03/19/2024 Page 8 of 9



Area divested in

I

Barnes Easements

Sawyer Ashland

Bayfield

Spider Lake Shanagolden

GordonExhibit A
M

N T E
Board
o o s e L a k e

BCPL

BCPL

Barnes

Ma l l ard Ln

M a l la rd Ln

Government Lot 1

1995 exchange
(Lot 1 of CSM 5459)

Lot Acquired in
1995 exchange

New access
and utility easement

to Barnes
Lot 1 of

CSM 5461

Lot 1
of

CSM 5460

R N A L  U S E  O N L Y  BCPL_IT - March 04, 2024   Sawyer-County-Properties-Town-Round-Lake-8x11L.mxd 

____________

County:  Sawyer

Town: Round Lake

____________

0 200100
Feet

µ

Round Lake Chippewa

BCPL
Properties

Barnes
Properties

)

 of Commissioners of Public Lands 03/19/2024 Page 9 of 9

nguyettfsy
Highlight


	Item5_Resolution - Barnes Easements.pdf
	State of Wisconsin Board of Commissioners of Public Lands
	BOARD MEETING
	MARCH 19, 2024






